## **EISNER AMPER**

THE FIRST 72+

**FINANCIAL STATEMENTS** 

**DECEMBER 31, 2024** 



## **CONTENTS**

	<u>Page</u>
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	1 - 3
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statements of Financial Position	4
Statements of Activities	5 - 6
Statements of Functional Expenses	7 - 8
Statements of Cash Flows	9
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	10 - 15
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer	16
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN	
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	17 - 18
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS	19



EisnerAmper LLP

One Galleria Blvd.
Suite 2100
Metairie, LA 70001 **T** 504.837.5990 **F** 504.834.3609

www.eisneramper.com

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of The First 72+

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### **Opinion**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The First 72+ (the "Organization"), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for each of the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for each of the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAS") and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States ("*Government Auditing Standards*"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

#### Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- · Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
  fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
  include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
  statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Report on Supplementary Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain other procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2025 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

EISNERAMPER LLP Metairie, Louisiana

Eisnerfimper LLP

June 24, 2025





# STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

## **ASSETS**

	2024	2023
Current assets:		
Cash	\$ 1,935,258	\$ 604,003
Promises to give	72,299	174,999
Grant receivable	81,270	39,569
Prepaids and other current assets	28,920	-
Total current assets	2,117,747	818,571
Operating lease right-of-use assets	25,671	49,843
Property and equipment, net	523,857	538,370
Total assets	\$ 2,667,275	\$ 1,406,784
<u>LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS</u>		
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$ 62,569	\$ 132,256
Operating lease liability, current portion	25,337	25,901
Note payable	40,000	40,000
Total current liabilities	127,906	198,157
Operating lease liability, net of current portion	407	24,012
Total liabilities	128,313	222,169
Net assets without donor restrictions	1,808,393	709,615
Net assets with donor restrictions	730,569	475,000
Total net assets	2,538,962	1,184,615
Total liabilities and net assets	\$ 2,667,275	\$ 1,406,784

# STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

	2024					
	Without Donor		or With Donor			
	Re	estrictions	Re	strictions		Total
REVENUES AND SUPPORT						
Contributions	\$	1,210,573	\$	1,307,440	\$	2,518,013
Grant revenue		340,110		-		340,110
Interest income		11,979		-		11,979
Net assets released from restriction		1,051,871		(1,051,871)		
Total revenues and support		2,614,533		255,569		2,870,102
EXPENSES						
Program services		957,648		-		957,648
Supporting services:						
Management and general		417,607		-		417,607
Fundraising	-	140,500				140,500
Total expenses		1,515,755				1,515,755
Change in net assets		1,098,778		255,569		1,354,347
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR		709,615		475,000		1,184,615
NET ASSETS AT END OF THE YEAR	\$	1,808,393	\$	730,569	\$	2,538,962

(Continued)

# STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

	2023					
	Without Donor		onor With Donor			
	Re	estrictions	Re	strictions		Total
REVENUES AND SUPPORT						
Contributions	\$	1,350,220	\$	145,000	\$	1,495,220
Grant revenue		123,812		-		123,812
Interest income		1,991		-		1,991
Net assets released from restriction		254,945		(254,945)		
Total revenues and support		1,730,968		(109,945)		1,621,023
<u>EXPENSES</u>						
Program services		996,376		-		996,376
Supporting services:						
Management and general		461,268		-		461,268
Fundraising		107,651		-		107,651
Total expenses		1,565,295				1,565,295
Change in net assets		165,673		(109,945)		55,728
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR		543,942		584,945		1,128,887
NET ASSETS AT END OF THE YEAR	\$	709,615	\$	475,000	\$	1,184,615

(Concluded)

THE FIRST 72+

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Total expenses

2024 **Supporting Services** Total **Program** Management Supporting Services and General Fundraising **Services** Total Salaries and wages 645,324 130,271 12,883 143,154 788,478 Employee benefits 76,307 21,495 9,673 31,168 107,475 Payroll taxes 41,192 11,387 5,329 16,716 57,908 Accounting fees 69,000 69,000 69,000 Contract services 34,339 82,347 82,347 116,686 Exoneree assistance 30,315 30,315 98,315 Fundraising supplies 98,315 98,315 17,923 17,923 17,923 Insurance Miscellaneous expenses 14,079 14,079 14,079 Depreciation 14,513 14,513 14,513 Office operations 57,200 17,875 14,300 32,175 89,375 Professional fees 21,000 21,000 21,000 Utilities 28,827 3,953 32,780 3,953 25,200 25,200 Lease expense Repairs and maintenance 18,944 18,944 Service charges 2,365 2,365 2,365 **Telecommunications** 6,797 6,797 6,797 Travel 4,602 4,602 4,602

417,607

140,500

(Continued)

\$ 1,515,755

558,107

957,648

THE FIRST 72+

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2023

		Supporting Services				
	Program Services	Management and General	Fundraising	Total Supporting Services	Total	
Salaries and wages	\$ 469,231	\$ 88,855	\$ 8,788	\$ 97,643	\$ 566,874	
Employee benefits	57,927	16,317	7,343	23,660	81,587	
Payroll taxes	31,462	8,697	4,070	12,767	44,229	
Accounting fees	-	42,000	-	42,000	42,000	
Contract services	97,110	132,058	-	132,058	229,168	
Exoneree assistance	249,837	-	-	-	249,837	
Fundraising supplies	-	-	59,981	59,981	59,981	
Insurance	-	53,475	-	53,475	53,475	
Miscellaneous expenses	-	12,470	-	12,470	12,470	
Depreciation	-	6,742	-	6,742	6,742	
Office operations	52,652	16,454	13,163	29,617	82,269	
Professional fees	-	20,500	-	20,500	20,500	
Utilities	10,463	21,198	-	21,198	31,661	
Lease expense	25,327	-	-	-	25,327	
Repairs and maintenance	2,367	31,932	-	31,932	34,299	
Service charges	-	1,169	-	1,169	1,169	
Telecommunications	-	9,401	-	9,401	9,401	
Travel			14,306	14,306	14,306	
Total expenses	\$ 996,376	\$ 461,268	\$ 107,651	\$ 568,919	\$ 1,565,295	

(Concluded)

# STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

	2024	2023		
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Change in net assets	\$ 1,354,347	\$	55,728	
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash				
provided by operating activities:				
Depreciation expense	14,513		6,742	
Right-of-use asset amortization	24,172		25,421	
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:				
Promises to give	102,700		159,945	
Grant receivable	(41,701)		(23,771)	
Other current assets	(28,920)		-	
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	(69,687)		48,119	
Operating lease assets and liabilities	(24,169)		(25,351)	
Net cash provided by operating activities	1,331,255		246,833	
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES				
Purchases of property	<u> </u>		(87,582)	
Net cash used in investing activities	-		(87,582)	
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			(45.55)	
Payments on notes payable			(40,000)	
Net cash used in financing activities	<del>-</del>		(40,000)	
Net increase in cash	1,331,255		119,251	
Not inorcuse in susin	1,001,200		110,201	
Cash, beginning of year	604,003		484,752	
			,	
Cash, end of year	\$ 1,935,258	\$	604,003	
Non-cash investing and financing activities:				
Additions to ROU assets obtained from new operating				
lease liabilities	\$ -	\$	50,164	
	Ψ -	Ψ	30,104	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

#### Organization

The First 72+ ("the Organization") is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization and was incorporated September 24, 2014 pursuant to the provision of the Louisiana Nonprofit Law, Louisiana R.S. 12:201 – 12:269 (1950 as amended). Effective January 3, 2019, the Organization's name was changed from Rising Foundations to The First 72+ with the Louisiana Secretary of State. The Organization's mission is to stop the cycle of incarceration by fostering independence and self-sustainability through education, stable and secure housing, and employment. Through the leadership and wisdom of formerly incarcerated people themselves, the Organization transforms the re-entry experience into one that builds on the strengths and abilities of people returning home from prison and ensures that they, their families, and their communities are given the greatest opportunity to grow and thrive.

#### **Basis of Presentation**

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP"). US GAAP requires the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions – Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increase in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statements of activities.

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization had no cash equivalents at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

#### Promises to Give

The Organization records unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year at net realizable value. In subsequent years, amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the statements of activities. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, promises to give were expected to be collected within one year.

The Organization determines the allowance for uncollectable promises to give based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Promises to give are written off when deemed uncollectable. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, an allowance was not deemed necessary.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

#### **Grants Receivables**

Receivables consisted of the unpaid balances as of year-end for government grant awards. Grants are billed to awarding agency based on expenses incurred on a reimbursement basis. Management considers the receivable balance to be fully collectible, and as a result, an allowance for doubtful accounts is not recorded.

#### Leases

The Organization leases office space and information technology equipment. Determination of leases is arranged at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets and operating lease liabilities on the statements of financial position.

ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of the lease payments over the lease term. As most of the Organization's leases do not provide an implicit rate, the risk-free rate is used based on the information available at commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The operating lease ROU assets also include any lease payments made and excludes lease incentives. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Organization will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

#### Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, or an unconditional promise to give is received. Conditional promises to give – that is, those with measurable performance or other barriers and right of return (or release) – are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

Revenues from government grants are recorded when the Organization has a right to reimbursement under the related grant, generally corresponding to the incurring of grant related costs by the Organization, or when otherwise earned under the terms of the grants. Amounts received prior to meeting the qualifying conditions and/or incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the statements of financial position. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no refundable advances.

#### Contributed Non-Financial Assets

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by GAAP.

Contributed non-financial assets are reported as their estimated fair value on the date of receipt and reported as expense when utilized. No contributed non-financial assets met the criteria prescribed by GAAP for recognition in 2024 and 2023.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

#### Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 27.5 years. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the statements of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

Impairment of long-lived assets is tested whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. The carrying value of a long-lived asset is considered impaired when the anticipated undiscounted cash flow from such asset is separately identifiable and is less than its carrying value. In that event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair market value of the long-lived asset. Fair market value is determined primarily using appraisals. Losses on long-lived assets to be disposed of are determined in a similar manner, except that fair market values are reduced for the cost to dispose. There were no impairments for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

#### Concentration of credit risk

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts at several financial institutions. The balances, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses and does not believe that significant credit risk exists as a result of this practice.

#### **Functional Expenses**

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities and are reconciled to the natural classifications in the statements of functional expenses. The majority of direct costs are charged directly to the appropriate program or functional area. Certain costs which benefit more than one functional area have been allocated among the Organization's programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are determined by management on an equitable basis. Office operations and rent have been allocated based on time and effort.

## **Income Taxes**

The Organization is exempt from income tax under IRC section 501(c)(3), though it is subject to tax on income unrelated to its exempt purpose, unless that income is otherwise excluded by the Code. The Organization has processes presently in place to ensure the maintenance of its tax-exempt status; to identify and report unrelated income; to determine its filing and tax obligations in jurisdictions for which it has nexus; and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered tax positions. The Organization has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

#### Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

## **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### 2. <u>Liquidity and Availability</u>

The following represents the Organization's financial assets and those available to meet general expenditures within twelve months as of December 31:

	2024	 2023
Financial assets at year end:	_	
Cash	\$ 1,935,258	\$ 604,003
Promises to give, net	72,299	174,999
Grant receivable	 81,270	 39,569
Total financial assets available to meet general expenditures	\$ 2,088,827	818,571

The Organization's goal is to maintain financial assets that will meet three months operating expenses.

## 3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

	 2024	 2023
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment	\$ 5,060	\$ 5,060
Building and leasehold improvements	540,052	540,052
Accumulated depreciation	(21,255)	(6,742)
Total property and equipment, net	\$ 523,857	\$ 538,370

Depreciation expense was \$14,513 and \$6,742 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

## 4. Note Payable

In October 2022, the Organization entered into a loan agreement with a related party in the amount of \$80,000. The loan has an interest rate of 3.0% compounded monthly for the purpose of paying construction costs. Payments of principal and interest were due starting 90 days after the date of the loan with the goal to repay the loan in full within 18 months. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the balance on the loan was \$40,000. This loan was paid in full in 2025.

#### 5. Leases

The Organization has operating leases for two buildings leased from related parties (see Note 9) and various information technology equipment at varying terms.

Information related to leases is as follows as of and for the years ended December 31:

	 2024	2023
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$ 25,249 \$	25,701
ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations	\$ - \$	50,164
Weighted average remaining lease term	.99 Years	1.93 Years
Weighted average discount rate	1.04%	4.64%

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### 5. <u>Leases (continued)</u>

As lessee, operating lease liabilities under non-cancellable leases (excluding short-term) leases are as follows as of December 31, 2024:

#### **Years Ending December 31:**

2025	\$ 25,901
2026	 412
Total lease payments	 26,313
Less: interest	(569)
	\$ 25,744

## 6. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Total net assets with donor restrictions for First 72+ as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 were \$730,569 and \$475,000, respectively. These net assets are considered restricted as follows as of December 31:

	2024	2023
Time Restricted	\$ 47,000	\$ 275,000
Restricted for Purpose: Economic Mobility Program	484,506	200,000
Economic Empowerment Program	199,063	-
Total purpose restricted net assets	683,569	200,000
Total restricted net assets	\$ 730,569	\$ 475,000

Total net assets released from restriction as follows for the period ending December 31:

		2024	_	2023
Time Restricted	\$	298,000		\$ 54,945
Restricted for Purpose:				
Economic Mobility Program		432,161		200,000
Economic Empowerment Program		321,710		-
Total purpose restricted net assets		753,871		200,000
Total restricted net assets	\$ 1	,051,871		\$ 254,945

## 7. <u>Economic Dependency</u>

The primary sources of revenues for the Organization are contributions and grants provided by various donors and funding agencies. Continued operations are dependent upon the renewal of grants and contributions from current funding sources as well as obtaining new funding. In 2024, the Organization had one major donor which accounted from approximately 35 % of total revenues.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### 8. Contingencies

The Organization participates in federal grant programs that are passed through local government agencies which are governed by various rules and regulations. Costs charged to the grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agency; therefore, to the extent that the Organization has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grant, refunds of any money received and the collectability of any related receivables as of December 31, 2024 might be impaired. In management's opinion, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing these grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies.

#### 9. Related Party Transactions

As described in Note 5, in May 2021, the Organization entered into an agreement with a company for the rental of two buildings. The organization renewed this agreement in December 2024. One of the Organization's Board members is the president of the company. As of December 31, 2024, the operating lease ROU asset and operating lease liability related to this agreement were \$24,600 and \$24,669, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, the operating lease ROU asset and operating lease liability related to this agreement were \$48,134 and \$48,203, respectively. The total rent expense under these agreements was \$25,200 for each of the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

As described in Note 4, in October 2022, the Organization entered into a loan agreement with the same company.

## 10. Subsequent Events

On January 27, 2025, the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) of the United States Federal Government instituted a pause (freeze) on the disbursement of federal grant and loan funds, which became effective on January 28, 2025. The extent to which the funding freeze impacts the Organization's operations, financial results, and cash flows, both current and future, will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with any measure of certainty or probability. As a result, the Organization is unable to estimate what impact, if any, the funding freeze has on the December 31, 2024 financial statements or the Organization's future operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, June 24, 2025, and determined that there were no other events that occurred that require additional disclosure. No other subsequent events occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these consolidated financial statements.



## SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

## YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

**Agency Head Name: Troy Glover, Executive Director** (from January - October)

Purpose	Amount
Salary (Contract Payments) Benefits- Health Insurance	\$173,209 12,866
	\$186,075

Agency Head Name: Tyrone Smith, Co-Executive Director (from November- December)

Purpose	Amount
Salary (Contract Payments)	\$15,600
Benefits- Health Insurance	5,630
	\$21,230

Agency Head Name: Courtney Evans, Executive Director (from November- December)

Purpose	Amount
Salary (Contract Payments) Benefits- Health Insurance	\$15,600 2,649
	\$18,249



#### EisnerAmper LLP

One Galleria Blvd.
Suite 2100
Metairie, LA 70001 **T** 504.837.5990 **F** 504.834.3609

www.eisneramper.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
The First 72+

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (*Government Auditing Standards*), the financial statements of The First 72+ (the "Organization"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2025.

#### **Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organizations internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the organization's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

## **Report on Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EISNERAMPER LLP

Eisner Amper LLP

Metairie, Louisiana

June 24, 2025





## SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS DECEMBER 31, 2024

## Finding 2023-001 Revenues and Receivables

## **Condition:**

The Organization did not properly account for all promises to give on the accrual basis of accounting in the prior year which resulted in the Organization identifying adjustments to opening balances in the current year.

## Recommendation:

We recommend that the Organization implement internal controls and procedures to ensure that promises to give are properly recorded.

## Status:

Resolved.